
Hamilton County Board of County Commissioners

Commissioner Boyd

AGENDA October 15, 2014

ROLL CALL

INVOCATION -

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG - Commissioner Boyd

Presentation Hamilton County Trustee Bill Hullander Honoring Employee's - Agenda Session Only October 8,
2014.

Minutes Recessed Meeting - September 24, 2014

Minutes Agenda Session - September 24, 2014

Minutes Regular Meeting - October 1, 2014

Report Order of Designation - Planning Commission - Todd Leamon - October 13, 2014

Report Order of Appointment - Union Fork-Bakewell Utility District - Samuel C. Petty - 4 year term

Res. No. 1014-16 A Resolution to approve and accept applications for notary public positions, the oath of Deputy
County Clerks, the oath of Deputy Sheriffs, the oath of Deputy County Trustees, and the bonds
of appointed officials.

Res. No. 1014-17 A Resolution to rezone from R-1 single family residential district and R-5 single wide
manufactured home district to A-1 agricultural district, properties located at 8150 & 8154
Standifer Gap Road.

Res. No. 1014-17A A Resolution to rezone from R-1 single family residential district and R-5 single wide
manufactured home district to A-1 agricultural district, properties located at 8150 & 8154
Standifer Gap Road.

Res. No. 1014-17B A Resolution to rezone from R-1 single family residential district and R-5 single wide
manufactured home district to A-1 agricultural district, properties located at 8150 & 8154
Standifer Gap Road.

Res. No. 1014-18 A Resolution granting the abandonment of an unopened alley parallel to the 5700 block of High
Street.

Res. No. 1014-19 A Resolution to rezone from R-1 single family residential district to C-1 tourist court and motel
district, property located at 3523 Banks Road.

Res. No. 1014-20 A Resolution accepting a State of Tennessee, Governor’s Highway Safety Office grant for the
“safe journey” project with a term ending September 30, 2015 and amending the Sheriff’s Office
operating budget by adding $108,769.15 to revenues and expenditures.

Res. No. 1014-21 A Resolution accepting a State of Tennessee, Governor’s highway safety office grant for the
“remove intoxicated and impaired drivers” project with a term ending September 30, 2015 and
amending the Sheriff’s Office operating budget by adding $148,245 to revenues and
expenditures.

Res. No. 1014-22 A Resolution to authorize the County Mayor to award five (5) days of paid leave for the purpose
of encouraging all Hamilton County Employees to participate in the United Way campaign
through payroll deduction.

Res. No. 1014-23 A Resolution for the Dallas Bay Volunteer Fire Department to scrap and sell a wrecked 2012
Ford F350 VIN # 1FD8W3H60CEA16441 which is co-titled with Hamilton County Government.
Vehicle was totaled by Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company.  Dallas Bay Volunteer Fire
Department will use the proceeds of sale for the purchase of Search and Rescue Equipment and
Firefighting Equipment.

Res. No. 1014-24 A Resolution approving the renewal of the contract with International Equipment Company, Inc.
for inspecting and testing automatic fire protection and alarm systems in County buildings for two
(2) additional one (1) year renewals, amounting to $21,952.77 annually, for the Department of
Financial Management and to authorize the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to
implement this Resolution.



Res. No. 1014-25 A Resolution ratifying the purchase of gasoline and diesel fuel for the period of September 1,
2014, through September 30, 2014, and to authorize the County Mayor to sign any contracts
necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1014-26 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor on behalf of Hamilton County, Tennessee, the
Health Services Division, operating as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department to
enter into and execute a continuation subcontract in the amount of $156,000.00 with
Southside/Dodson Avenue Community Health Centers for the provision of Women, Infants and
Children (WIC) Services for a 24 month period to include October 1, 2013 through September
30, 2015.

Res. No. 1014-27 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor on behalf of Hamilton County, Tennessee, the
Health Services Division, operating as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department to
sign a contract with the Tennessee Department of Health in the amount of $416,700.00 to
provide Sexually Transmitted Disease and HIV Education, Prevention and Control Services  in
Hamilton County, for a time period of January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015 and
decrease the expense and revenue budgets by $45,900.00.

Res. No. 1014-28 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor on behalf of Hamilton County, Tennessee, the
Health Services Division, operating as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department to
accept a grant in the amount of $206,104.00 from the Department of Health and Human
Services for the purpose of continuing and expanding existing services at the Homeless Health
Care Center and to amend the revenue and expense budget by $206,104.00.

Res. No. 1014-29 A Resolution accepting the bid of Mountain View Ford for one (1) 4x2 utility vehicle amounting to
$22,023.00 for the Building Inspection Department and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any
contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1014-30 A Resolution accepting the bid of Triad Corporation for Chester Frost Park electrical and water
upgrades amounting to $1,129,576.00 and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts
necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1014-31 A Resolution approving the purchase of bulk de-icing salt from Morton Salt, Inc. amounting to
$83.64 per ton from the State Contract for the Highway Department and authorizing the County
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1014-32 A Resolution to amend the distance requirement to be enforced in the granting of the right to sell
beer by the package within Hamilton County, Tennessee, from its present 750 feet of a church,
school, or other place of public gathering to 200 feet.

Res. No. 1014-33 A Resolution clarifying the Health Insurance benefits available to Hamilton County Employees
upon their retirement as previously promulgated by Resolution No. 392-15, as amended.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

DELEGATIONS ON MATTERS OTHER THAN ZONING

Any invocation that may be offered before the official start of the Commission
meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private citizen, to and for the
benefit of the Commission.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation
speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Commission
and do not necessarily represent the religious beliefs or views of the
Commission in part or as a whole.  No member of the community is required to
attend or participate in the invocation and such decision will have no impact on
their right to actively participate in the business of the Commission.



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

SEPTEMBER 24, 2014 
 

 
STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Recessed Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  September 24, 2014 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 24th day of September, 2014, a Recessed 

Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit: -- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman. County Clerk Bill 

Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner 

Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Turner-Smedley, and Chairman Fields.  

Total present - 9.  Total absent – 0. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

 Commissioner Bankston welcomed Pastor Bill Henry, Calvary Baptist Church, 

who gave the invocation.  Commissioner Bankston led in the pledge to the flag.  

 

 1 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

SEPTEMBER 24, 2014 
 

 
PRESENTATION – TENNESSEE WILDLIFE RESOURCE AGENCY – ENTERPRISE 

SOUTH NATURE PARK DEER HUNT 

 

Recently the Commission received a citizens concern regarding deer population 

and scheduled hunts at the Enterprise South Nature Park.  Kirk Miles, Wildlife Manager 

IV from the Tennessee Wildlife Resource Agency (TWRA) was present at the 

Commission’s request. 

 

He had be made aware of Commission Resolution No. 1111-14 requiring a 

TWRA report to the Commission no later than May of each year prior to a hunt. He 

stated that reports had not been made in previous years because TWRA was not aware 

of this requirement. 

 

 Mr. Miles provided detailed TWRA statistics. A copy of this report was distributed 

to members of the Commission and the Clerk’s office as a matter of record.  He 

reported that over the past three years, the overall health and weight of the deer had 

improved due to hunts.  He reported that the number of deer harvested in 2013 had 

decreased from the previous year. He stated that hunts were currently scheduled for 

October 6 and 7, 2014.   

 

 Commissioner Mackey asked Mr. Miles how he would respond to previously 

expressed concerns from individuals who were in opposition to the hunts. 

 2 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

SEPTEMBER 24, 2014 
 

 
Mr. Miles replied that hunting was both an important component of society as 

well as essential to the safety and health of the deer in the park and surrounding areas. 

 

Commissioner Boyd asked about the number of deer at the Nature Park, and if 

numbers could be obtained by Infrared photography.  Mr. Miles responded that a 

number was not available, and it was difficult to use this technology in smaller 

properties such as the Nature Park.  

 

In response to Commissioner Fairbanks, Mr. Miles assured the Commission that 

measures are taken to ensure the safety of those participating in the hunt as well as 

those who work in businesses within Enterprise South industrial park. 

 

Commission Graham reinterated that the hunt is needed to keep the park, deer 

herd, and surrounding area safe.   

 

Tony Sanders, a resident at 2558 West Wind Drive, and Bill Swan, a resident at 

3042 Deerwood Lane, (affiliated with the Wounded Warrior project) spoke in support of 

the hunts. Many individiuals in the audience stood in support of the hunts. No opposition 

was present.  

 

 3 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

SEPTEMBER 24, 2014 
 

 
DISCUSSION RE: RESOLUTION NO. 914-14 

 

 Commissioner Haynes, Chairman of the Zoning Committee, spoke regarding 

Resolution No. 914-14 adopted on September 17, 2014. He requested that this matter 

be reconsidered at the upcoming Regular Meeting on October 1, 2014 in order to give 

members of the public an opportunity to speak on this case. 

 

 Without objection, Chairman Fields stated that this matter would be heard by the 

Commission at that time. 

 

There being no further business, Chairman Fields declared the meeting 

adjourned.   

 

Respectfully submitted: 

 
      

                                                                           _______________________________    
   William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 

 
Approved: 
 
 
________  
Date     Clerk’s Initials 
 

 4 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

SEPTEMBER 24, 2014 
 
 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  September 24, 2014 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 24th day of September, 2014, an Agenda 

Preparation Session of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and 

held at the Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, 

when the following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman. County Clerk Bill 

Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner 

Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Turner-Smedley, and Chairman Fields.  

Total present - 9.  Total absent – 0. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

 

 

 1 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

SEPTEMBER 24, 2014 
 
 

PRESENTATION – CERTIFICATE OF APPRECIATION – EAST HAMILTON 

MIDDLE/HIGH SCHOOL 

 

 Commissioner Turner-Smedley presented Certificates of Appreciation to staff at 

East Hamilton Middle/High School for their courageous efforts to save the life of student 

Joel Ervin. These individuals included teachers Holly Smith, Bailey Reeves, Ryan 

Cooper, and Nurse Lynn Henry.  Commissioner Turner-Smedley noted that the 

defibrillators that saved Joel’s life had been purchased through former Commissioner 

Larry Henry’s discretionary funds. 

 

Principal Gail Chuy reported that during a recent basketball game, Joel collapsed 

resulting from a seizure. It was the quick response of these staff members, through use 

of the school’s Automated External Defibrillator (AED) that saved his life.  

She expressed her appreciation to the staff for remembering their training and acting in 

unison during a difficult situation.  She noted that the entire staff would be trained in 

CPR in January.  She indicated that currently 55 schools in Hamilton County are without 

AED devices. She also encouraged members of the Commission to consider supporting 

efforts to have an AED in each school. 

 

Joel Ervin and Circuit Court Clerk Larry Henry both emphasized to the 

Commission the importance of AED devices in the school system. 

 2 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

SEPTEMBER 24, 2014 
 
 

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

 

Chairman Fields indicated the upcoming agenda items would be considered as 

follows: 

 

• Resolutions No. 1014-1 was the usual County Clerk item regarding notaries, etc.  
This required no committee assignment. 

• A Trustee Monthly Report for August, 2014 would be submitted as a matter of 
record. 

• A Trustee Excess Fee Report for August, 2014 would be submitted as a matter 
of record. 

• Resolutions No. 1014-2 and 1014-3 were heard by a Committee of the Whole. 
• Resolutions No. 1014-4 through 1014-13 were assigned to the Finance 

Committee, chaired by Commissioner Graham. 
• Resolutions No. 1014-14 was assigned to the Legal Committee, chaired by 

Commissioner Bankston. 
 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 1014-2 

 

 Chairman Fields asked that Deputy Clerk Michael Clark read Resolution No. 

1014-2 into the record. This Resolution would confirm the appointments by the County 

Mayor of Administrators of Divisions and Directors of Departments for Hamilton County 

General Government.  There was no discussion regarding this item. 

 

 3 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

SEPTEMBER 24, 2014 
 
 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 1014-3 

 

 Commissioner Haynes spoke regarding this Resolution, which would reappoint 

Nathaniel Goggans and Ron Powers as Judicial Commissioners for one-year terms 

expiring October 31, 2015. He asked whether current Chief Judicial Commissioner 

Randall Russell would continue to serve as Chief through his term, which would expire 

April 30, 2015. 

 

 Attorney Taylor indicated Chief Russell would serve as Chief for the one-year 

term to which he was appointed. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for announcements from members of the Commission.  

 

Commissioner Haynes announced that on Saturday, September 27 at 9:00 AM, 

Loftis Middle School would be hosting a 5k run to raise funds for technology needs at 

the school. 

 

 4 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

SEPTEMBER 24, 2014 
 
 

Commissioner Haynes spoke regarding the Tennessee Wildlife Resources 

Agency (TWRA) presentation made during today’s Recessed Meeting. He asked 

whether any further action was necessary to be taken by the Commission.   

 

Attorney Taylor indicated that no action was necessary. The scheduled hunts will 

continue as planned. 

 

Commissioner Boyd spoke regarding a recent dinner at the State Capitol. 

Congressman Jim Cooper was the keynote speaker at the event. During his speech, 

Congressman Cooper expressed his opinion that Tennessee was a national leader in 

regards to stewardship and leadership.  Commissioner Boyd pointed out that he had 

often regarded Hamilton as the best led County in the State.  He expressed his thanks 

to Mayor Coppinger, his staff, County Clerk Bill Knowles, Trustee Bill Hullander, and 

Assessor of Property Bill Bennett for the valuable services they provide to Hamilton 

County citizens. 

 

Commissioner Turner-Smedley announced that Westview Elementary School 

would be holding a Harvest Hoedown at the East Brainerd ball fields on Saturday, 

September 27th. She invited anyone interested to attend. 

 

 5 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

SEPTEMBER 24, 2014 
 
 

Mayor Coppinger reported that the County Fair would be held at Chester Frost 

Park on Saturday, September 27 and Sunday, September 28. He also invited everyone 

to attend. 

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for delegations on matters other than zoning. There were 

none. 

 

Being no further business, Chairman Fields declared the meeting adjourned. 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

      

      _________________________________   
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
Approved: 
           

_______  
Date      Clerk’s Initials 

 
 

 6 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

OCTOBER 1, 2014 
 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Regular Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  October 1, 2014 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 1st day of October, 2014, a Regular Meeting 

of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman.  County Clerk 

Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner 

Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Turner-Smedley, and Chairman Fields.  

Total present - 9.  Total absent – 0.  

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his  

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

Attached hereto is a copy of the Public Notice of this meeting, which was 

published in a local newspaper and made a matter of record of this meeting. 

 

 1 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

OCTOBER 1, 2014 
 

Commissioner Boyd introduced Pastor Ron Johnson, Fellowship Baptist Church, 

who gave the invocation.  Commissioner Bankston led in the pledge to the flag. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Mackey, seconded by Commissioner Graham, 

that the minutes of the Agenda Preparation Session of September 10, 2014, the 

Regular Meeting of September 17, 2014, be approved, treat same as read, made a 

matter of record and filed.  The foregoing Motion was unanimously adopted on a Roll 

Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Turner-Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 

0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

TRUSTEE’S UNAUDITED FINANCIAL REPORT 

 

The Trustee’s unaudited financial report for fiscal year ending June 30, 2014 was 

submitted and made a matter of record.  

 

 2 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

OCTOBER 1, 2014 
 

TRUSTEE’S EXCESS FEE REPORT 

 

The Trustee’s excess fee report for August 2014 was submitted and made a 

matter of record.  

 

TRUSTEE’S MONTHLY REPORT 

 

The Trustee’s monthly report for August 2014 was submitted and made a matter 

of record.  

 

 Chairman Fields reported Resolution No. 1014-14 had been heard by the Legal 

Committee had not reached a recommendation. He stated that unless there was 

objection this Resolution would be withdrawn from consideration. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fairbanks, seconded by Commissioner Haynes, 

to adopt Resolution No. 1014-14.  The motion was not voted on at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-14  A RESOLUTION EXPRESSING THE AGREEMENT AND 

SUPPORT OF THE COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY OF HAMILTON COUNTY 

TENNESSEE, FOR THE ADOPTION OF AMENDMENT #1 TO THE CONSTITUTION 

FOR THE STATE OF TENNESSEE. 

 

 3 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

OCTOBER 1, 2014 
 

 

Commissioner Fairbanks indicated that it had been the overwhelming response 

from District 1 asking that he support this Resolution. He stated his intent to do so. 

 

The Resolution relates to the November 4, 2014 General Election ballot 

containing a Constitutional issue pertaining to the abortion law.  

 

Commissioner Haynes reported that he had released a public statement earlier 

today expressing his personal support of Amendment 1. He also indicated he planned 

to vote in affirmation of this Resolution.  He noted that members of the Commission had 

been personally attacked regarding this matter. 

 

Commissioners Beck and Boyd stated their opinion that this matter was a 

personal decision for the voters and not for the Commission as a legislative body to 

publically support.  They felt the Resolution was outside the duties and responsibilities 

of the Commission. 

 

Commissioner Turner-Smedley indicated that she had received hundreds of 

phone calls and emails in support of the Resolution.  She stated that approval of 

Amendment 1 would help legislators to be able to provide better information on this 

subject. She stated her intent to support this Resolution. 

 

 4 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

OCTOBER 1, 2014 
 

Commissioner Boyd stated he did not intend to vote on this item, as he felt it 

should not be under the purview of the Commission. 

 

Commissioner Mackey expressed his agreement with a more limited government 

on matters such as these. He stated that the voters of Hamilton County would have the 

opportunity at the General Election in November to vote their own convictions. 

 

The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Nay”; Commissioner Boyd, 

“Abstain”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Abstain”; 

Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Nay”; Commissioner Turner-

Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total 

“Aye” votes – 5.  Total “Nay” votes – 2.  Total Abstentions – 2. 

 

During the roll call, Commissioner Bankston indicated his belief that this issue 

should not have been brought before the Commission, but as a pro-life supporter and 

follower of Jesus Christ, he would cast his vote in favor of the Resolution. 

 

Clerk Knowles responded that Resolution No. 1014-14 had been adopted. 

 

 5 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

OCTOBER 1, 2014 
 

At this point, someone in the audience asked for permission to speak.  Chairman 

Fields stated that there would be an opportunity to discuss this issue or any matter other 

than zoning at the end of the meeting. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-1  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT 

APPLICATIONS FOR NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, THE OATHS OF DEPUTY 

COUNTY CLERKS, THE OATH OF DEPUTY SHERIFF, THE OATH OF DEPUTY 

REGISTER, THE OATH OF SESSIONS COURT JUDGE, AND THE OFFICIAL BOND 

AND OATH OF PUBLIC ADMINISTRATOR. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Haynes, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1014-1.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Turner-Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 

0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

Chairman Fields asked that Resolution No. 914-14, previously adopted on 

September 17, 2014, be read at this time. 

 

 6 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

OCTOBER 1, 2014 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 914-14  A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM M-1 INDUSTRIAL 

DISTRICT TO R-1 SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, PROPERTIES 

LOCATED IN THE 4000 BLOCK OF BANNER CREST DRIVE; 6400 BLOCK 

BRITTANY LANE; 5700 BLOCK OF BURNING BUSH LANE; 8300 BLOCK 

CROSSBOW COURT; 5200 BLOCK DARROWBY DRIVE; 6100 BLOCK FLAG 

POINT DRIVE; 6200 & 6400 BLOCKS OF FLAG POINT DRIVE; 6500-7200 BLOCKS 

FLAGSTONE DRIVE; 5500 BLOCK HIDDEN OAKS LANE; 4900-5400 BLOCKS OF 

HUNTER VILLAGE DRIVE; 5300 BLOCK OF KELLY`S POINT; 5700 BLOCK 

KNOTTY PINE DRIVE; 5600 BLOCK KRISTY LANE; 5400 BLOCK LODESTONE 

DRIVE; 3900 BLOCK MOUNT VERD LANE; 5500 BLOCK OLD HUNTER ROAD; 

7100-7200 BLOCKS OF TEABERRY COURT; 8200-8400 BLOCKS TROUBADOUR 

WAY; AND THE 5200-5300 BLOCKS VILLAGE GARDEN DRIVE. 

 

Commissioner Haynes, Chairman of the Zoning Committee, reported that this 

matter had been heard by the Planning Commission on August 11.  The public was 

given an opportunity to give input at that time.  The Planning Commission and Regional 

Planning Agency (RPA) staff recommended its approval.  A Resolution was submitted 

for consideration and adopted by the Commission on September 17, 2014.  However, at 

that meeting the Commission failed to hear from those in the audience who desired to 

speak on the matter.  It was coming back before the Commission today to give the 

public the chance to speaker further on this item. 

 

 7 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

OCTOBER 1, 2014 
 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Fairbanks, 

to reconsider Resolution No. 914-14.  

 

Zachary Wiley, a resident at 5701 Knotty Pine Drive, addressed the Commission 

regarding his specific parcel of property.  He reported that he was also a City of 

Chattanooga employee, working in the code enforcement division.  He stated that he 

worked with an individual who owned an inflatables company. A portion of those 

inflatables were stored on his property, with customers picking them up at the property. 

He requested that the Commission consider returning 5701 Knotty Pine Drive to its 

previous zoning of M-1, which would permit use of the property for his type of business. 

 

RPA staff member Greg Haynes provided historical details regarding why the 

properties had previously been zoned as M-1. He stated it was his understanding that 

the Commission had the authority to reconsider this matter without it having to first go 

back before the Planning Commission. 

 

Attorney Taylor confirmed that the Commission was the final decision for matters 

that had been submitted by RPA staff. 

  

 RPA Executive Director John Bridger responded to additional questions by 

members of the Commission. 

 

 8 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

OCTOBER 1, 2014 
 

 Mr. Haynes explained that the RPA in making their recommendation to the 

Commission, had already exempted three parcels of property being considered in the 

original rezoning application.  These were exempted at the request of the property 

owners.  Those parcels were located on the fringe of the subdivisions in question.  This 

request being made today by Mr. Wiley was for exemption of a parcel that was within 

the core of one of the subdivisions being rezoned.  He noted that the M-1 was 

considered the least restrictive zone unless certain conditions were attached. 

 

 Ms. Kranske the owner of properties previously exempted by the RPA indicated 

this matter was back before the Commission today because someone in opposition to 

her exemption wasn’t given the opportunity to speak at the September 17th meeting.  

That individual was not present in opposition today.   

 

 She explained that she had purchased the parcels of acreage under the M-1 

zone with the intent to have horses.  That is how the property is currently being used.  

She questioned whether today’s action would be final so she could be assured that she 

was in compliance with zoning regulations. 

 

 Chairman Fields indicated his understanding that if today’s Resolution was 

reconsidered and adopted, she could begin using her property as M-1. 

 

 9 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

OCTOBER 1, 2014 
 

Upon questioning by Commissioner Bankston, Mr. Haynes responded that if the 

Commission wished to grant Mr. Wiley’s request for exemption from the mass rezoning, 

restrictions could be included in a Motion to limit the use to an inflatable business only. 

 

 The previous motion to reconsider Resolution No. 914-14 was unanimously 

adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission 

being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Turner-

Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Commissioner Beck was not present 

during this vote.  Total present – 8.  Total absent – 1.  Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” 

votes – 0.   

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

adopt Resolution No. 914-14 as amended to leave the property at 5701 Knotty Pine 

Drive in the M-1 Zone with the restriction that the property can only be used as an 

inflatable business. The motion was not voted on at this time. 

 

Chairman Fields stated that an amended Resolution would require a new number 

indicating its action for an October meeting. Clerk Knowles confirmed the new number 

would be Resolution No. 1014-15 and requested his office be furnished the new 

Resolution. 

 10 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

OCTOBER 1, 2014 
 

 

Upon questioning by Commissioner Bankston, Mr. Wiley stated that the inflatable 

business was owned by another individual and that the main business office was at 

another location. The Knotty Pine Drive address would be used for some storage and 

pick-up. 

 

There was additional lengthy discussion regarding the use of the property and 

the possible change in the tax assessment. 

 

The motion to adopt Resolution No. 1014-15, made by Commissioner Haynes, 

seconded by Commissioner Graham, was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, 

with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as 

follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Turner-

Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total 

“Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-2  A RESOLUTION TO CONFIRM THE APPOINTMENTS BY 

THE COUNTY MAYOR OF ADMINISTRATORS OF DIVISIONS AND DIRECTORS OF 

DEPARTMENTS FOR HAMILTON COUNTY GENERAL GOVERNMENT. 

 

 11 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

OCTOBER 1, 2014 
 

Resolution No. 1014-2 had been heard by a Committee of the Whole. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner Graham, 

to adopt Resolution No. 1014-2.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted 

on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being 

present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Turner-Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  

Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

 Chairman Fields asked that Resolutions No. 1014-3 and 1014-3A be considered 

together at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-3  A RESOLUTION RE-APPOINTING TWO (2) JUDICIAL 

COMMISSIONERS FOR A ONE (1) YEAR TERM, COMMENCING NOVEMBER 1, 

2014, AND EXPIRING OCTOBER 31, 2015; AND ESTABLISHING THE 

COMPENSATION TO BE RECEIVED BY EACH DURING THEIR RESPECTIVE 

TERM(S) IN OFFICE. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-3A  A RESOLUTION RE-DESIGNATING RANDALL L. 

RUSSELL AS CHIEF JUDICIAL COMMISSIONER FOR A TERM BEGINNING 

 12 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

OCTOBER 1, 2014 
 

NOVEMBER 1, 2014, AND ENDING MAY 31, 2015; AND ESTABLISHING THE 

COMPENSATION TO BE RECEIVED. 

 

Chairman Fields reported that Resolution No. 1014-3 had been heard by a 

Committee of the Whole.  He stated that Resolution No. 1014-3A was a late item for 

consideration. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Mackey, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolutions No. 1014-3 and 1014-3A.  The motion was not voted on at this time. 

 

As a matter of explanation for Resolution No. 1014-3A, Attorney Taylor informed 

the Commission that during the previous meeting, it had been stated that Chief Judicial 

Commissioner Russell’s term as Chief would not expire until 2015.  It was discovered 

after the meeting that Chief Russell’s term as Chief would expire on October 31, 2014. 

Therefore, it was necessary to designate a Chief Judicial Commissioner for the 

following six-month term.  

 

Commissioner Beck expressed concern with the method used for reappointing 

the Chief Judicial Commissioner position. 

 

The foregoing Resolutions were unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with 

the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

 13 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

OCTOBER 1, 2014 
 

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Turner-Smedley, “Aye”; and 

Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  

Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

 Chairman Fields asked that without objection, Resolutions No. 1014-4 through 

1014-13 be considered together at this time. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-4  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A U.S.D.O.J. GRANT AND 

TO AMEND THE SHERIFF’S OPERATING BUDGET BY INCREASING REVENUES 

AND EXPENDITURES BY $14,459. PURSUANT TO THE GRANT TERMS, THE 

FUNDS MAY BE USED FOR CORRECTION PURPOSES ONLY. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-5  A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT A CONTINUATION 

CONTRACT BETWEEN THE SHERIFF’S OFFICE AND THE STATE OF 

TENNESSEE’S DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES FOR A CHILD SUPPORT 

PROGRAM FOR THE PERIOD JULY 1, 2014 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2015. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-6  A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF 

CLASSIFIED LEGAL ADS FOR THE STATE PRIMARY AND COUNTY GENERAL 

ELECTIONS FROM CHATTANOOGA PUBLISHING COMPANY FOR THE ELECTION 

 14 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

OCTOBER 1, 2014 
 

COMMISSION AMOUNTING TO $15,951.93 AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY 

MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-7  A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF U. S. 

POSTAGE FOR THE 2014 TAX BILLS FROM DIVERSIFIED COMPANIES, LLC FOR 

THE HAMILTON COUNTY TRUSTEE IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $42,900 

AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS 

NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-8  A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF 

GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL FOR THE PERIOD OF AUGUST 1, 2014, THROUGH 

AUGUST 31, 2014, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 

CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-9  A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SOFTWARE UPDATE 

AND SUPPORT CONTRACT FOR CITYWORKS SOFTWARE FROM AZTECA 

SYSTEMS, INC. FOR ONE (1) YEAR, BEGINNING NOVEMBER 11, 2014, THROUGH 

NOVEMBER 10, 2015, FOR THE GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEMS 

DEPARTMENT AMOUNTING TO $33,750.00 AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 

MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 15 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

OCTOBER 1, 2014 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-10  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF CBGC OF 

MURFREESBORO FOR ONE (1) HEAVY DUTY VAN AMOUNTING TO $24,813.51 

FOR THE MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 

MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-11  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES 

DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT TO ENTER INTO AND EXECUTE A CONTINUATION CONTRACT 

WITH THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH FOR THE PROVISION OF WIC 

(WOMEN, INFANTS AND CHILDREN) FOR THE TIME PERIOD OCTOBER 1, 2014 

TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 IN THE AMOUNT OF $6,535,600.00 AND TO INCREASE 

THE EXPENSE AND REVENUE BUDGETS BY $56,600.00. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-12  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF TALLEY 

CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC. FOR SEWER AND WATER IMPROVEMENTS 

FOR THE COCA-COLA BOTTLING COMPANY UNITED, INC. AMOUNTING TO 

$585,069.15 FOR THE ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE 

COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 16 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

OCTOBER 1, 2014 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-13  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF JAKE 

MARSHALL SERVICE, INC. FOR HAMILTON COUNTY COURTS BUILDING HVAC 

CONTROLS AMOUNTING TO $373,733.00 AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 

MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

Commissioner Graham provided details regarding Resolutions No. 1014-4 

through 1014-13 and stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended 

approval. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolutions No. 1014-4 through 1014-13.   

 

Commissioner Mackey spoke regarding Resolution No. 1014-6. He noted that it 

had been implied that only one newspaper qualified to publish the information and was 

therefore sole source.  He stated that he had received a ruling that if a newspaper 

company publishes at least once a week is has been determined to be a newspaper of 

general circulation under the law and would therefore be qualified to bid on this type of 

contract.  

 

 17 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

OCTOBER 1, 2014 
 

The foregoing Resolutions were unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with 

the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  

Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Turner-Smedley, “Aye”; and 

Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  

Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for announcements from members of the Commission.  

 

Commissioner Graham spoke regarding the upcoming election in November. He 

announced that the Lookout Valley Neighborhood Association would be hosting a 

political candidate forum on Thursday, October 2 at 7:00 PM in the auditorium at the 

John A. Patten Center. He invited everyone interested to attend. 

 

Commissioner Graham, Mayor Coppinger, and Chairman Fields spoke regarding 

the various community events that occurred this past weekend.  These events included 

the County Fair, the Ironman Triathlon, and the Buddy Walk. Each thanked all the 

volunteers and staff who had contributed to make these events possible. 

 

 18 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

OCTOBER 1, 2014 
 

Commissioner Boyd spoke regarding Resolution No. 1014-14.  He reiterated the 

importance of the Commission continuing to focus on the important business of the 

county. 

 

Commissioner Fairbanks announced that the 2014 Punkinfest fall festival would 

be held at the Soddy Daisy parks on Saturday, October 4 at 10:00 AM. 

 

Commissioner Turner-Smedley welcomed her husband Mark Smedley, who was 

in attendance for today’s meeting. 

 

Attorney Taylor asked that members of the Commission meet with him for a brief 

legal meeting in the adjacent conference room immediately following adjournment of 

today’s meeting. 

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for delegations on matters other than zoning.  

 

Chairman Fields recognized a large group in the audience regarding Resolution 

No. 1014-14.  He stated that a total of ten minutes would be allotted to each group 

wishing to speak for or against this matter. 

 

 19 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

OCTOBER 1, 2014 
 

 Those individuals speaking in support of the Commission’s action today included 

Charlie Wysong, a resident at 6872 Robin Drive; Wendy Morgan, a resident at 1143 

James Boulevard; and Isabella Von Memmingen, a resident in Jaycee Towers. 

 

 The group of individuals speaking in opposition to the Commission’s action 

included Brian Merritt, a resident of District 4; Ann Coulter, a resident at 516 Graham 

Street; Annie Hall, a resident of District 2; Carla Askonas, a resident of District 2; and 

Landon Howard, a resident of District 9.  

 

There being no further business, Chairman Fields declared the meeting in recess 

until Wednesday, October 8, 2014 at 9:30 AM.  

 

Respectfully submitted: 

 
      

____________________________________    
     William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 

Approved: 
   

_______   
Date     Clerk’s Initials 
 

 20 







No. 1014-16 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
October 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
   A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT APPLICATIONS FOR 

NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, THE OATH OF DEPUTY COUNTY 
CLERKS, THE OATH OF DEPUTY SHERIFFS, THE OATH OF 
DEPUTY COUNTY TRUSTEES, AND THE BONDS OF APPOINTED 
OFFICIALS.  

   
WHEREAS, William F. (Bill) Knowles, Hamilton County Clerk, has certified according to the 

records of his office that the persons named on the attached listing labeled 
HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS have duly 
applied for the positions so sought; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled OATH OF DEPUTY COUNTY 
CLERKS have taken the oath of office; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office the persons 

named on the attached listing labeled OATH OF DEPUTY SHERIFFS have 
taken the oath of office; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled OATH OF DEPUTY COUNTY 
TRUSTEES have taken the oath of office; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled “THE BONDS OF APPOINTED 
OFFICIALS” have submitted a bond for filing as required; and 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS: 
 
 

1. That the persons named on the listing labeled HAMILTON COUNTY 
NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS are hereby approved as applicants to be 
submitted to the Secretary of State; and 

 
2. That the person named on the listing labeled OATH OF DEPUTY COUNTY 

CLERKS is accepted and the oath therefore is approved as taken; and  
 
3. That the persons named on the listing labeled OATH OF DEPUTY SHERIFFS 

is accepted and the oaths therefore are approved as taken; and 
 
4. That the persons named on the listing labeled OATH OF DEPUTY TRUSTEES 

is accepted and the oaths therefore are approved as taken; and 
 

 5. That the persons named on the listing labeled THE BONDS OF APPOINTED 
OFFICIALS are accepted and the bonds therefore are approved as taken; and 

 
 6. That each such person named on any listing hereinabove mentioned (which listing 

is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference) is hereby deemed to have 
been individually considered according to the particular matter relating thereto. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER PASSAGE. 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
OCTOBER 15, 2014 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 1 

 
Floria Mae Adamson 8151 Leon Brenda Lane Adamson Developers, LLC. 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 Same 
 423-894-5596 Same 
  423-510-8615 
 
Tiffany Ashton 5873 Lake Resort Terrace, Apt. E208 Miller & Miller Court Reporters 
 Chattanooga, TN 37415 12804 Union Road 
 423-400-9372 Knoxville, TN 37934 
  865-675-1971 
 
Tracey Avans 305 Canary Avenue Plaza Urology Group, P.C. 
 Trenton, GA 30752 1300 Cleveland Avenue 
 423-653-0000 Chattanooga, TN 37404 
  423-756-7860 
 
Rebecca W. Bednar 112 Pinehurst Ave. CapitalMark Bank & Trust 
 Chattanooga, TN 37415 801 Broad Street 
 423-503-0144 Chattanooga, TN 37415 
  423-386-2682 
 
Bylinda L. Bell 4811 Viola Drive Brian P. Mickles, PLLC. 
 Chattanooga, TN 37415 701 Market St., Ste. 1610 
 423-870-1755 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-266-1237 
 
Marcey Belue 4910 Marylin Lane MB Tax Solutions 
 Chattanooga, TN 37411 4706 Brainerd Rd., Ste. 104 
 423-987-3340 Chattanooga, TN 37411 
  423-622-3350 
 
Linda Black 5611 Pinelawn Avenue SunTrust Bank 
 Chattanooga, TN 37411 101 Browns Ferry Rd. 
 865-228-1002 Chattanooga, TN 37419 
  N/A 
 
Erin C. Bolinger 956 Lawson Street Greentech Homes 
 Chattanooga, TN 37415 1925 Rossville Ave. 
 423-298-6480 Chattanooga, TN 37408 
  423-475-6915 
 
Amanda Brangan 227 Sterling Drive SunTrust Bank 
 Canton, GA 30115 7001 Lee Highway 
 770-605-0065 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-892-2433 
 
Gregory D. Brock, II 5193 Chestnut Creek Rd., Apt. 2 Brock Auto Sales 
 Apison, TN 37302 5010 Hwy. 58 
 423-599-0778 Chattanooga, TN 37416 
  423-499-4900 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
OCTOBER 15, 2014 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 2 

 
David A. Button 1358 Dreamfield Dr. Retired 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 N/A 
 423-451-7760 N/A 
  N/A 
 
Kami J. Clark 3824 Mission View Ave. Adams Masonry, Inc. 
 Chattanooga, TN 37411 2811 S. Hickory St. 
 404-273-0395 Chattanooga, TN 37404 
  423-629-9343 
 
Laura M. Coleman 1241 Greenbrook Lane Community Trust & Banking Co. 
 Hixson, TN 37343 9125 Lee Highway 
 423-842-4337 Ooltewah, TN 37363 
  423-238-1111 
 
Gilda Corder 900 Oak Street The Yellow Deli 
 Chattanooga, TN 37403 737 McCallie Ave. 
 423-322-7877 Chattanooga, TN 37403 
  423-468-1777 
 
Amanda Crawford 104 Park Avenue Chattanooga Publishing Company 
 Rossville, GA 30741 400 East 11th Street 
 706-861-2125 Chattanooga, TN 37403 
  N/A 
 
Buffy Davis 8945 Daisy Dallas Rd. Memorial Credit Union 
 Hixson, TN 37343 6800 Longview Rd. 
 423-596-2082 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-855-1770 
 
Genette Dugger 4216 Saint Elmo Ave. Alan R. Beard, Atty. 
 Chattanooga, TN 37409 23 Patten Pkwy. 
 615-573-9932 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-266-0199 
 
S.K. Ferguson 4713 Bonny Oaks Drive, Apt. 2515 Regions Bank 
 Chattanooga, TN 37416 345 Frazier Ave., Ste. 109 
 423-834-6933 Chattanooga, TN 37405 
  423-321-6530 
 
Krista A. Gale 8046 Fox Glove Drive Total Insurance Solutions 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 400 S. Moore Rd., Ste. C 
 423-718-6056 Chattanooga, TN 37412 
  423-894-1295 
 
Barbara Gordon 1125 Akins Road Hamilton County Govt. 
 Chickamauga, GA 30707 1600 3rd Street 
 706-539-1182 Chattanooga, TN 37404 
  423-209-5271 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
OCTOBER 15, 2014 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 3 

 
Tina M. Grant 3700 Sullivan Ave. Lookout Property Mgmt., Inc. 
 Chattanooga, TN 37412 516 Chestnut St., Ste. 104 
 423-304-3821 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-266-7100 
 
Michelle Green 184 Hidden Oaks Drive Plaza Urology Group, P.C. 
 Flintstone, GA 30725 1300 Cleveland Avenue 
 423-315-2141 Chattanooga, TN 37404 
  423-756-7860 
 
Tonja Gunnell 1312 Ely Rd., Apt. 12 Juvenile Court Child Support 
 Hixson, TN 37343 1221 E. Main Street 
 N/A Chattanooga, TN 37408 
  423-209-5970 
 
Julie A. Hammond 532 Meadowlark Trail Service Master Building Mtn. Con, Inc. 
 Chattanooga, TN 37412 2121 McCallie Ave. 
 423-899-0895 Chattanooga, TN 37404 
  423-622-0445 
 
Carolyn Diane Hardy 832 Darryl Lane Retired 
 East Ridge, TN 37412 N/A 
 423-629-5915 N/A 
  N/A 
 
Quentin S. Harris 208 Timber Knoll Drive, #103 SunTrust Bank 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 7001 Lee Hwy. 
 423-505-5775 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-892-3183 
 
Sandra B. Harrison 708 S. Greenwood Avenue RPA / City of Chattanooga 
 Chattanooga, TN 37404 1250 Market St., Ste. 200 
 423-752-8007 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-643-5900 
 
Tina H. Hennen 403 Belvoir Avenue Diversified Electronics 
 Chattanooga, TN 37411 237 S. Cedar Avenue 
 423-619-8967 South Pittsburg, TN 37380 
  423-837-1740 
 
Vashtee Honore 8461 Reguge Lane Bank of America 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 2126 Gunbarrel Rd. 
 423-255-2103 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-424-1468 
 
Jessica Ivins 300 W. 6th St., Apt. 813 Center Centre 
 Chattanooga, TN 37402 811 Broad Street, Ste. 400 
 856-266-2010 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-805-7420 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
OCTOBER 15, 2014 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 4 

 
Carla R. Johnson PO BOX 2081 City of Chattanooga 
 Hixson, TN 37343 1102 S. Watkins Street 
 423-443-5685 Chattanooga, TN 37404 
  423-643-6066 
 
Sue Lakey 6579 Hickory Brook Rd. Silverdale Baptist Church 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 7236 Bonny Oaks Drive 
 423-316-0121 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-892-2173 
 
Kim M. Lattimore 1910 Oak Street Ranstad/Maximus 
 Chattanooga, TN 37404 N/A 
 423-652-0993 N/A 
  N/A 
 
Lee Ledford 3761 Cuscowilla Trail RPA / City of Chattanooga 
 Chattanooga, TN 37415 1250 Market St., Ste. 2000 
 423-643-5932 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-643-5900 
 
Sharon Greta Locklear 800 Creek Overlook Greta Locklear, Atty. at law 
 Chattanooga, TN 37415 PO BOX 4548 
 423-902-6600 Chattanooga, TN 37405 
  423-902-6600 
 
Gloria J. Lowe 7411 Wolftever Trl. Dawn Crough-Ameriprise Financial 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 6111 Shallowford Rd., Ste. 101 
 423-987-8364 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-424-3341 
 
Karen D. Lowe 1527 Graysville Rd. Advanced Collision, Inc. 
 Ringgold, GA 30736 1410 Gunbarrel Rd. 
 706-937-2815 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-899-0320 
 
Twanda Lyons 3616 Bennett Rd. North American Credit Services 
 Chattanooga, TN 37412 2810 Walker Rd. 
 423-316-3157 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-894-5654 
 
Casey L. McClain 622 Georgia Ave., Apt. 308 SunTrust Bank 
 Chattanooga, TN 37402 802 Scenic Hwy. 
 423-802-0025 Lookout Mtn., TN 37350 
  423-821-2240 
 
Jasmine D. Milligan 7310 Standifer Gap Rd. Apt. 616 Dupont Community Credit Union 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 4503 Hixson Pike 
 615-881-6274 Hixson, TN 37343 
  423-875-6955 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
OCTOBER 15, 2014 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 5 

 
Judy Milliken 2148 S. Shore Acres Rd. Hamilton County Clerk's Office 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 625 Georgia Ave., Rm. 101 
 423-240-5334 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-209-6525 
 
Stephen A. Morgan 1157 Tamarack Trail U.S. Express 
 East Ridge, TN 37412 4080 Jenkins Rd. 
 423-605-5752 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-510-5159 
 
Betty G. Moseley 114 Kingwood Drive Self Employed 
 Chattanooga, TN 37412 Same 
 423-867-2105 Same 
  Same 
 
Erin E. Nanney 5616 River Glade Drive Bayside Baptist Church 
 Chattanooga, TN 37416 6100 Hwy. 58 
 423-344-2154 Harrison, TN 37341 
  423-344-8327 
 
Bettye Parker 4001 Ooltewah Ringgold Rd. Bettye Parker Realty, Inc. 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 4817 Hwy. 58 N 
 423-396-3839 Chattanooga, TN 37416 
  423-894-5322 
 
Regina C. Parris 831 Darryl Lane Hamilton County Govt. 
 Chattanooga, TN 37412 1250 Market St., Ste. 1020 
 423-298-4542 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-209-7865 
 
K. Peoples 5722 Alabama Ave. Alan Beard/Lisa Bowan 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 23 Patton Pkwy. 
 423-805-2156 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-266-0199 
 
Casie Reynolds 6811 Highway 136 Eric Buchanan & Associates, PLLC. 
 Trenton, GA 30752 414 McCallie Ave. 
 423-314-4343 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-634-2506 
 
Kathy Scoggins 157 Hanshaw Drive Economy Honda Superstore 
 Rock Spring, GA 30739 2135 Chapman Rd. 
 423-322-9879 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-899-1122 
 
Melissa M. Smith 301 Shady Crest Drive Self Employed 
 Chattanooga, TN 37415 Same 
 N/A Same 
  423-364-4183 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
OCTOBER 15, 2014 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 6 

 
Tammie Smith 1263 Red Belt Road SunTrust Bank 
 Chickamauga, GA 30707 101 Browns Ferry Rd. 
 423-255-1629 Chattanooga, TN 37419 
  423-821-2260 
 
S. Chase Smith 10713 Hixson Pike Brian P. Mickles, PLLC 
 Soddy Daisy, TN 37379 701 Market St., Ste. 1610 
 423-332-9540 Chattanooga, TN 37402 
  423-266-1237 
 
Brian C. Smith 502 Fleetwood Drive Self Employed 
 Lookout Mtn., TN 37350 3918 TN Ave., Ste. 100 
 423-825-5027 Chattanooga, TN 37409 
  423-953-2756 
 
Amanda Stinson 3 Stone Point Lane Catherine M. White, Atty. 
 Signal Mtn., TN 37377 1016 Dallas Rd., Ste. 203 
 423-645-7192 Chattanooga, TN 37405 
  423-267-9904 
 
Brandi Sturdivant 8401 Oak Drive Larry's Heat & Air 
 Chattanooga, TN 37421 PO BOX 22642 
 205-246-4806 Chattanooga, TN 37422 
  423-855-8694 
 
Syndi Tankersley 8416 Dunnhill Lane Cash Express 
 Hixson, TN 37343 5513 Ringgold Rd. 
 423-834-6662 Chattanooga, TN 37412 
  423-499-4935 
 
O Turner 335 Mockingbird Lane Capital Toyota 
 Fort Oglethorpe, GA 30742 5808 Lee Highway 
 423-580-3368 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-892-0661 
 
Bethany W. Underwood 235 Cabin Road Insurco, Inc. 
 Pikeville, TN 37367 4515 Brainerd Rd. 
 423-544-3808 Chattanooga, TN 37411 
  423-800-6767 
 
Mari L. Walls 6322 Hixson Pike, Apt. B96 Jeffrey L. Cleary, PLLC. 
 Hixson, TN 37343 2109 Fairmount Rd. West 
 423-596-7826 Signal Mtn., TN 37377 
  423-314-7376 
 
Jennifer Ward 2626 Crestwood Drive Title Insurance Company 
 Chattanooga, TN 37415 7405 Shallowford Rd. #540 
 423-693-7612 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-899-0913 



HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS 
OCTOBER 15, 2014 

NAME RESIDENCE BUSINESS 

 7 

 
E. K. Wasson 6989 Sawtooth Drive Olsten Staffing Services 
 Ooltewah, TN 37363 2115 Stein Drive 
 423-994-9575 Chattanooga, TN 37421 
  423-855-7859 
 
Barb Wise 5602 Crestview Drive Self Employed 
 Hixson, TN 37343 N/A 
 817-597-7085 N/A 
  Same 
 
Lyndsie York 348 Leming Lane UTC 
 Hixson, TN 37343 615 McCallie Ave. 109 
 423-595-6532 Chattanooga, TN 37403 
  423-425-4416 
 















































No. 1014-17 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
October 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

 A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM R-1 SINGLE FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT AND R-5 SINGLE WIDE 

MANUFACTURED HOME DISTRICT TO A-1 
AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT, PROPERTIES LOCATED 

AT 8150 & 8154 STANDIFER GAP ROAD  
 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Jimmy L. Hydas petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County 
Regional Planning Commission to rezone from R-1 Single Family Residential District 
and R-5 Single Wide Manufactured Home District to A-1 Agricultural District, 
properties located at 8150 & 8154 Standifer Gap Road, and said Planning 
Commission after hearing recommended that this petition be denied; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Jimmy L. Hydas requested that the County Commission consider 
said petition and notice has been published in a newspaper in general circulation in 
Hamilton County that the County Commission will hold a public hearing on October 
15, 2014, concerning the passage of this Resolution as required by law, and such 
having been held. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE 
BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County 
be amended to rezone from R-1 Single Family Residential District and R-5 Single 
Wide Manufactured Home District to A-1 Agricultural District, properties located at 
8150 & 8154 Standifer Gap Road, Lot 2 of the Standifer Gap Baptist Church Property, 
Plat Book 62, Page 108, ROHC, being the property described in Deed Book 9318. 
Page 875, ROHC, and an unplatted tract of land located at 8150 Standifer Gap Road, 
being the property described in Deed Book 10046, Page 420, ROHC.  Tax Maps 149-
023.04 and 194-022.03 as shown on the attached map. 
 
 
 



 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 















No. 1014-17A 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 

October 15, 2014 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 

 

 A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM R-1 SINGLE FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT AND R-5 SINGLE WIDE 

MANUFACTURED HOME DISTRICT TO A-1 
AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT, PROPERTIES LOCATED 

AT 8150 & 8154 STANDIFER GAP ROAD  
 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Jimmy L. Hydas petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County 
Regional Planning Commission to rezone from R-1 Single Family Residential District 
and R-5 Single Wide Manufactured Home District to A-1 Agricultural District, 
properties located at 8150 & 8154 Standifer Gap Road, and said Planning 
Commission after hearing recommended that this petition be approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Jimmy L. Hydas requested that the County Commission consider 
said petition and notice has been published in a newspaper in general circulation in 
Hamilton County that the County Commission will hold a public hearing on October 
15, 2014, concerning the passage of this Resolution as required by law, and such 
having been held. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE 
BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County 
be amended to rezone from R-1 Single Family Residential District and R-5 Single 
Wide Manufactured Home District to A-1 Agricultural District, properties located at 
8150 & 8154 Standifer Gap Road, Lot 2 of the Standifer Gap Baptist Church Property, 
Plat Book 62, Page 108, ROHC, being the property described in Deed Book 9318. 
Page 875, ROHC, and an unplatted tract of land located at 8150 Standifer Gap Road, 
being the property described in Deed Book 10046, Page 420, ROHC.  Tax Maps 149-
023.04 and 194-022.03 as shown on the attached map. 
 
 

 



 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 

☐  

Rejected: 
 

☐ 
 

 

 

Approved: 

 

☐ 

County Clerk 

 

 

Vetoed: 
 

☐ 
 

  County Mayor 

 

October 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 















No. 1014-17B

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 
October 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM R-1 SINGLE FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT AND R-5 SINGLE WIDE 

MANUFACTURED HOME DISTRICT TO A-1 
AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT, PROPERTIES LOCATED 

AT 8150 & 8154 STANDIFER GAP ROAD  

WHEREAS, Jimmy L. Hydas petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County 
Regional Planning Commission to rezone from R-1 Single Family Residential District 
and R-5 Single Wide Manufactured Home District to A-1 Agricultural District, 
properties located at 8150 & 8154 Standifer Gap Road, and said Planning 
Commission after hearing recommended that this petition be approved; and 

WHEREAS, Jimmy L. Hydas requested that the County Commission consider 
said petition and notice has been published in a newspaper in general circulation in 
Hamilton County that the County Commission will hold a public hearing on October 
15, 2014, concerning the passage of this Resolution as required by law, and such 
having been held. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE 
BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County 
be amended to rezone from R-1 Single Family Residential District and R-5 Single 
Wide Manufactured Home District to A-1 Agricultural District, subject to:  1)
Residential and storage building/barn uses only.  Outdoor storage only 
permitted per condition #3; 2) No livestock permitted; and 3) No outdoor 
storage permitted within 325 feet of Standifer Gap Road,  properties located at 
8150 & 8154 Standifer Gap Road, Lot 2 of the Standifer Gap Baptist Church Property, 
Plat Book 62, Page 108, ROHC, being the property described in Deed Book 9318. 
Page 875, ROHC, and an unplatted tract of land located at 8150 Standifer Gap Road, 
being the property described in Deed Book 10046, Page 420, ROHC.  Tax Maps 149-



 

 

023.04 and 194-022.03 as shown on the attached map. 
 
 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 

☐  

Rejected: 
 

☐ 
 

 

 

Approved: 

 

☐ 

County Clerk 

 

 

Vetoed: 
 

☐ 
 

  County Mayor 

 

October 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 















No. 1014-18 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
October 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

 A RESOLUTION GRANTING THE ABANDONMENT OF 
AN UNOPENED ALLEY PARALLEL TO THE 5700 

BLOCK OF HIGH STREET 
 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Sergio Rodriguez petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County 
Regional Planning Commission for the abandonment of an unopened alley parallel to 
the 5700 Block of High Street, and said Planning Commission after hearing 
recommended that this petition be approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Sergio Rodriguez requested that the County Commission consider 
said petition and notice has been published in a newspaper in general circulation in 
Hamilton County that the County Commission will hold a public hearing on October 
15, 2014, concerning the passage of this Resolution as required by law, and such 
having been held. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE 
BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County 
be amended for the abandonment of an unopened alley parallel to the 5700 Block of 
High Street.  Abandonment of an unopened alley beginning 85 feet to the south of 
Norfolk Southern Railroad going southwest 341.92 feet and ending at the southeast 
property line of tax maps 132I-B-001 and 002.  Tax Maps 132I-B-001 and 002 as 
shown on the attached map. 
 
 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE 
PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 
 



 

 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 













No. 1014-19 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
October 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

 A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM R-1 SINGLE FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO C-1 TOURIST COURT AND 

MOTEL DISTRICT, PROPERTY LOCATED AT 3523 BANKS 
ROAD 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Mike Whitener/Evie Campbell/POA Steve Campbell petitioned the 
Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning Commission to rezone from R-1 
Single Family Residential District to C-1 Tourist Court and Motel District, property 
located at 3523 Banks Road, and said Planning Commission after hearing 
recommended that this petition be denied; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Mike Whitener/Evie Campbell/POA Steve Campbell requested 
that the County Commission consider said petition and notice has been published in a 
newspaper in general circulation in Hamilton County that the County Commission will 
hold a public hearing on October 15, 2014, concerning the passage of this Resolution 
as required by law, and such having been held. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County be amended to rezone from 
R-1 Single Family Residential District to C-1 Tourist Court and Motel District, property located at 3523 
Banks Road, an unplatted tract of land located at 3523 Banks Road, being the property described in 
Deed Book 9311, Page 501, ROHC. Tax Map 150, Parcel 140 as shown on the attached map. 
 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE 
PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 















No. 1014-20 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
October 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A STATE OF TENNESSEE, GOVERNOR’S HIGHWAY 
SAFETY OFFICE GRANT FOR THE “SAFE JOURNEY” PROJECT WITH A TERM 
ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 AND AMENDING THE SHERIFF’S OFFICE OPERATING 
BUDGET BY ADDING $108,769.15 TO REVENUES & EXPENDITURES. 
 
WHEREAS, the Governor’s Highway Safety Office has awarded the Sheriff’s Office a grant, 
via federal funding, with a project titled “Safe Journey”, in the amount of $108,769.15; and, 
 
WHEREAS, these grant funds will be used to educate the community on child passenger safety 
and train volunteers in the state for car seat installation; and, 
 
WHEREAS, this project will commence immediately and will have an ending date of 
September 30, 2015; and, 
 
WHEREAS, funding for this grant will be used to pay for salaries and benefits, and used to 
purchase capital and various project related materials; and 
  
WHEREAS, no local match is required by Hamilton County, nor the Sheriff’s Office. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A STATE OF TENNESSEE, GOVERNOR’S HIGHWAY SAFETY 
OFFICE GRANT FOR THE “SAFE JOURNEY” PROJECT WITH A TERM ENDING SEPTEMBER 
30, 2015 AND AMENDING THE SHERIFF’S OFFICE OPERATING BUDGET BY ADDING 
$108,769.15 TO REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLICE WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 



No. 1014-21 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
October 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A STATE OF TENNESSEE, GOVERNOR’S HIGHWAY 
SAFETY OFFICE GRANT FOR THE “REMOVE INTOXICATED AND IMPAIRED 
DRIVERS” PROJECT WITH A TERM ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 AND AMENDING 
THE SHERIFF’S OFFICE OPERATING BUDGET BY ADDING $148,245 TO REVENUES 
AND EXPENDITURES. 
 
WHEREAS, the Governor’s Highway Safety Office has awarded the Sheriff’s Office a grant, 
via federal funding, with a project titled “Remove Intoxicated and Impaired Drivers”, in the 
amount of $148,245; and, 
 
WHEREAS, these grant funds will be used on overtime for saturation patrols on roadways to 
identify and cite “Driving Under the Influence (DUI) and Impaired Drivers” offenders; and, 
 
WHEREAS, this project will commence immediately and will have an ending date of 
September 30, 2015; and, 
 
WHEREAS, funding for this grant will be used to pay for overtime and related benefits and 
supplies; and 
  
WHEREAS, no local match is required by Hamilton County, nor the Sheriff’s Office. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A STATE OF TENNESSEE, GOVERNOR’S HIGHWAY SAFETY 
OFFICE GRANT FOR THE “REMOVE INTOXICATED AND IMPAIRED DRIVERS” PROJECT 
WITH A TERM ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 AND AMENDING THE SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
OPERATING BUDGET BY ADDING $148,245 TO REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLICE WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 



No. 1014-22 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
October 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO AWARD FIVE (5) 
DAYS OF PAID LEAVE FOR THE PURPOSE OF ENCOURAGING ALL HAMILTON 
COUNTY EMPLOYEES TO PARTICIPATE IN THE UNITED WAY CAMPAIGN 
THROUGH PAYROLL DEDUCTION. 
 
 
WHEREAS, Hamilton County Government traditionally participates in the annual United 

Way campaign to benefit non-profit, community organizations; and, 
 
WHEREAS, payroll deduction is the recommended method to contribute to the United Way 

and all County employees are encouraged to take advantage of the payroll 
deduction system for donations; and, 

 
WHEREAS, as an incentive for employees to support the United Way this year, a proposal 

has been made to award one (1) day of paid leave to each of five (5) Hamilton 
County employees selected through a random drawing of Hamilton County 
employee payroll deduction participants; and, 

 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of Hamilton County to accept said proposal to 

encourage participation in the United Way Campaign to benefit the non-profit 
community organization. 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the County Mayor is hereby authorized to award five Hamilton County employees, one 
day of paid leave each, selected through a random drawing of Hamilton County employee 
payroll deduction participants to promote participation in the 2014 Hamilton County 
Government United Way Campaign. 
 



 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 



No. 1014-23 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
October 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION FOR THE DALLAS BAY VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT TO 
SCRAP AND SELL A WRECKED 2012 FORD F350 VIN # 1FD8W3H60CEA16441 
WHICH IS CO-TITLED WITH HAMILTON COUNTY GENERAL GOVERNMENT.  
VEHICLE WAS TOTALED BY PHILADELPHIA INDEMNITY INSURANCE 
COMPANY. DALLAS BAY VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT WILL USE THE 
PROCEEDS OF SALE FOR THE PURCHASE OF SEARCH AND RESUE EQUIPMENT 
AND FIREFIGHTING EQUIPMENT 

 
WHEREAS, THE 2012 FORD F350 VIN # 1FD8WW3H60CEA16441; AND, 
 
WHEREAS, THE DALLAS BAY VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT DESIRES 

THAT THE SAID VEHICLE THAT WAS WRECKED AND TOTALED 
BE SOLD AS SCRAP; AND, 

  
WHEREAS, THAT SAID MONIES FROM THE SALE OF SCRAP OF THE VEHICLE 

BE UTILIZED TO PURCHASE FUTURE SEARCH AND RESCUE 
EQUIPMENT AND FIREFIGHTING EQUIPMENT; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That Hamilton County’s interest in said wrecked and totaled co-titled vehicle with Dallas Bay 
Volunteer Fire Department be terminated so the vehicle may be scraped and sold in reasonable 
manner and proceeds to be applied to the purchase of future Search and Rescue Equipment and 
Firefighting Equipment by Dallas Bay Volunteer Fire Department. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 



No. 1014-24 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
October 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE RENEWAL OF THE CONTRACT WITH INTERNATIONAL 
EQUIPMENT COMPANY, INC. FOR INSPECTING AND TESTING AUTOMATIC FIRE 
PROTECTION AND ALARM SYSTEMS IN COUNTY BUILDINGS FOR TWO (2) ADDITIONAL 
ONE (1) YEAR RENEWALS, AMOUNTING TO $21,952.77 ANNUALLY, FOR THE 
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY 
MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, International Equipment Company, Inc. was awarded the bid on Resolution No. 911-31 

for a three-year contract, with the option to renew two additional one-year renewals for 
inspecting and testing automatic fire protection and alarm systems; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the amount of this contract is subject to change as buildings are added or deleted from 

the contract; and, 
 
WHEREAS, International Equipment Company, Inc. has agreed to the additional annual contract 

renewals with the same pricing, as requested in the bid specifications; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the contract with International Equipment Company, Inc. for  two (2) additional one (1) year 
contract renewals, amounting to $21,952.77 annually, for inspecting and testing automatic fire 
protection and alarm systems is hereby approved, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any 
contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 





No. 1014-25 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
October 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL FOR THE 
PERIOD OF SEPTEMBER 1, 2014, THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2014, AND TO AUTHORIZE 
THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department was authorized to make purchases of petroleum products 

on the open market; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the following purchases were made between September 1, 2014, through September 

30, 2014.  
 
 September 5, 2014, $20,875.54 for 7,908 gallons of E10 gasoline at 2.6398 per gallon 

from Sweetwater Valley Oil Company, Inc.  
 
 September 8, 2014, $21,227.23 for 7,426 gallons of diesel fuel at 2.858501 per gallon 

from Mansfield Oil Company. 
 
 September 8, 2014, $2,381.20 for 800 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 2.9765 

per gallon from Collins Oil Company, Inc. 
 
 September 9, 2014, $19,469.25 for 7,500 gallons of E10 gasoline at 2.5959 per gallon 

from Sweetwater Valley Oil Company. 
  
 September 9, 2014, $2,718.58 for 925 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 2.939 per 

gallon from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc. 
 
 September 9, 2014, $1,396.03 for 475 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 2.939 per 

gallon from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc. 
 
 September 10, 2014, $22,410.12 for 7,937 gallons of diesel fuel at 2.8235 per gallon 

from Sweetwater Valley Oil Company, Inc. 
  
 September 10, 2014, $22,410.12 for 7,937 gallons of diesel fuel at 2.8235 per gallon 

from Sweetwater Valley Oil Company, Inc. 



 

 

 
 
 
 September 10, 2014, $21,502.03 for 8,376 gallons of E10 gasoline at 2.5671 per gallon 

from Pilot Travel Centers, LLC. 
 
 September 12, 2014, $21,155.09 for 8,365 gallons of E10 gasoline at 2.5290 per gallon 

from Collins Oil Company, Inc. 
 
 September 15, 2014, $20,975.22 for 8,380 gallons of E10 gasoline at 2.50301 per 

gallon from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc. 
  
  
    
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That the above purchases be ratified in the best interest of Hamilton County, and the County Mayor is 
authorized to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 







No. 1014-26 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
October 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, 
TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON 
COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT TO ENTER INTO AND EXECUTE A CONTINUATION 
SUBCONTRACT IN THE AMOUNT OF  $156,000.00 WITH SOUTHSIDE/DODSON AVENUE 
COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTERS FOR THE PROVISION OF WOMEN, INFANTS AND CHILDREN 
(WIC) SERVICES FOR A 24 MONTH PERIOD TO INCLUDE OCTOBER 1, 2013 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 
30, 2015. 

WHEREAS,  the overall objective of the Tennessee Department of Health’s and the Chattanooga-
Hamilton County Health Department’s Women, Infants and Children (WIC) program 
is to provide nutrition education and specific nutritious foods to low income women, 
infants and children who are determined to be income eligible and at nutritional risk; 
and 

 
WHEREAS,  the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department seeks to continue 

subcontracting with the Southside/Dodson Avenue Community Health Centers for 
WIC services; and 

 
WHEREAS, this program and services are for the health and well being of the citizens of Hamilton 

County.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
 That the County Mayor be authorized to sign the attached subcontract with the Southside/Dodson 

Avenue Community Health Centers in order in provide WIC services at the health centers for the period 
October 1, 2013 to September 30, 2015 in the amount of $156,000.00. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 





























No. 1014-27 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
October 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, 
TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON 
COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT TO SIGN A CONTRACT  WITH THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT 
OF HEALTH IN THE AMOUNT OF $416,700.00 TO PROVIDE SEXUALLY TRANSMITTED DISEASE 
AND HIV EDUCATION, PREVENTION AND CONTROL SERVICES  IN HAMILTON COUNTY,  FOR A 
TIME PERIOD OF JANUARY 1, 2015 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND DECREASE THE EXPENSE 
AND REVENUE BUDGETS BY $45,900.00.    
 
WHEREAS, sexually transmitted diseases, including HIV continue to be a public health threat in 

Hamilton County; and 
 
WHEREAS, appropriate and timely education, diagnosis, treatment and contact identification and 

treatment has been proven to be an effective means of controlling these diseases; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department provides this service to persons 

in Hamilton County; and  
 
WHEREAS,  the Tennessee Department of Health provides funding to support this service; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Tennessee Department of Health reduced required activity in this contract’s Scope 

of Service. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 

That the County Mayor be authorized to sign the attached contract in the amount of $416,700.00  for the 
provision of sexually transmitted disease and HIV education, prevention and control services for the 
residents of Hamilton County for a time period of January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015 and 
decrease the expense and revenue budgets by $45,900.00. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 





































































No. 1014-28 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
October 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, 
TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-
HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT TO ACCEPT A   GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$206,104.00  FROM THE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES FOR THE  
PURPOSE OF CONTINUING AND EXPANDING EXISTING SERVICES AT THE HOMELESS 
HEALTH CARE CENTER AND TO AMEND THE REVENUE AND EXPENSE BUDGET BY 
$206,104.00. 
 
WHEREAS,  the Homeless Health Care Center has provided direct primary care, substance 

abuse, and assistance services to Chattanooga’s homeless population since 1988; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the complexity of the health care needs of the homeless population requires that 

adequate health care providers are available to meet these complex needs; and  
 
WHEREAS, there continues to be inadequate dental care resources for the homeless population; 

and 
 
 WHEREAS,  the Department of Health and Human Services has appropriated funding to the 

Health Department for the specific purpose of adding dental and health care 
providers at the Homeless Health Care Center. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 That the County Mayor be authorized to accept a grant in the amount of     

$206,104.00 to continue and expand services at the Homeless Health Care Center 
and to amend the revenue and expense budget by $206,104.00. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 









No. 1014-29 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
October 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF MOUNTAIN VIEW FORD FOR ONE (1) 
4X2 UTILITY VEHICLE AMOUNTING TO $22,023.00 FOR THE BUILDING 
INSPECTION DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN 
ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) 4X2 utility 

vehicle for the Building Inspection Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from Mountain View Ford amounting to $22,023.00 was considered 

to be the lowest and best bid; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Mountain View Ford for one (1) 4X2 utility vehicle amounting to $22,023.00 
for the Building Inspection Department is hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best 
bid received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement 
this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 

























No. 1014-30 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
October 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF TRIAD CORPORATION FOR CHESTER 
FROST PARK ELECTRICAL AND WATER UPGRADES AMOUNTING TO 
$1,129,576.00 AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 
CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for Chester Frost Park 

electrical and water upgrades for the Engineering Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from Traid Corporation amounting to $1,129,576.00 was considered 

to be the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Triad Corporation for Chester Frost Park electrical and water upgrades 
amounting to $1,129,576.00 is hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid 
received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this 
resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 













No. 1014-31 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
October 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF BULK DE-ICING SALT FROM 
MORTON SALT, INC. AMOUNTING TO $83.64 PER TON FROM THE STATE 
CONTRACT FOR THE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY  
MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were solicited for bulk de-icing salt and no bids were received from the 

three major manufacturers because of supply and demand, as well as current 
contract obligations; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the State Contract allows non-TDOT purchases to local governments; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the purchase of bulk de-icing salt for the Highway Department from the State 

Contract (SWC#507) is the most feasible and economical; and,  
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the purchase of bulk de-icing salt from the State Contract from Morton Salt, Inc. for the 
Highway Department is hereby approved and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any 
contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 





No. 1014-32 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
October 15, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE DISTANCE REQUIREMENT TO BE 
ENFORCED IN THE GRANTING OF THE RIGHT TO SELL BEER BY THE 
PACKAGE WITHIN HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, FROM ITS PRESENT 
750 FEET OF A CHURCH, SCHOOL OR OTHER PLACES OF PUBLIC 
GATHERING TO 200 FEET. 
 

WHEREAS,  as authorized by Tennessee Code Annotated Section 57-5-107 
et seq., this county legislative body adopted Resolution No. 
1278-52 which empowered the Hamilton County Beer Board  
to deny all applications for the sale of beer by the package 
where such applicant’s building at its nearest point is less than 
seven hundred fifty (750) feet from the nearest point of the 
building of a church, school or other places of public gathering, 
the measurement thereof to be made by a straight line from 
said points; and  

 
WHEREAS,  Hamilton County is growing rapidly, and by reason thereof, 

desirable locations for the sale of beer by the package are 
practically impossible to find under the present restrictions, 
especially in consideration of the fact that new laws have been 
enacted by the Tennessee General Assembly which allow 
grocery stores to sell beer; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the sale of beer by the package is, in all practicality, the same 

as the sale of any other legal commodity; and  
 
WHEREAS,  this county legislative body in its discretion, verily believes 

that by reason of the foregoing there is and should be a 
distinction drawn between the sale of beer by the package and 
the consumption thereof on the premises; and  

 



 

 

WHEREAS,  the City of Chattanooga (which comprises a larger portion of 
Hamilton County than any other municipality) allows the sale 
of beer by the package to be within two hundred (200) feet (as 
measured from doorway to doorway) from a church, school or 
other place of public gathering. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

That, under the authority of Tennessee Code Annotated Section 57-5-107 et 
seq., the Hamilton County Beer Board be, and hereby is, instructed to deny all 
applications for the sale of beer by the package where such applicant’s building 
at its nearest point is less than two hundred (200) feet (as measured from 
doorway to doorway) from a church, school or other places of public gathering, 
the measurement thereof to be made by a straight line from said points. 
 

BE IF FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

October 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 



No. 1014-33 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 

Hamilton County 

 

 

October 15, 2014 
Date (Month, Day, Year) 

 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 

RESOLUTION 

 

 

 A RESOLUTION CLARIFYING THE HEALTH INSURANCE BENEFITS 

AVAILABLE TO HAMILTON COUNTY EMPLOYEES UPON THEIR 

RETIREMENT AS PREVIOUSLY PROMULGATED BY RESOLUTION NO. 392-15, 

AS AMENDED. 

WHEREAS,  by Resolution No. 392-15, this county legislative body 

enumerated certain benefits available to Hamilton 

County employees upon their retirement; and  

WHEREAS,  said resolution was later amended (by Resolutions 

numbered 492-16 and 492-53); and  

WHEREAS,  clarification still needs to be made as to the expressed 

intent of said previous resolutions as adopted, while in no 

way altering or amending said previous resolutions. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 

IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 

 

That Hamilton County, Tennessee shall provide to its employees upon their respective  

 retirement the following benefits, in addition to those to which they are specifically  

 qualified to receive through the Tennessee Consolidated Retirement System “TCRS”): 

 

1. Any employee retiring before reaching the age of sixty (60) years, and having  less 

than thirty (30) years of service with Hamilton County, will not be allowed to 

continue on the County’s health insurance plan.  

 

2. Any employee retiring with thirty (30) years of service to Hamilton County, 

irrespective of their age at the time of their retirement, shall be allowed to continue 

on the County’s health insurance plan after their retirement until they attain the age 

at which they will be eligible for Medicare coverage and shall not be required to 

pay for said coverage.  Such employee’s spouse and/or child(ren) (as may be 

federally-required for coverage of health insurance), shall likewise be entitled to 



remain on the County’s health insurance plan until said spouse attains the age at 

which they are eligible for Medicare coverage, and/or the child(ren) attains the age 

at which they are no longer allowed to be covered by their parent’s plan. 

 

3. Any employee retiring upon reaching the age of 60 years, with no less than ten (10) 

years and no more than fifteen (15) years of service to Hamilton County, shall be 

allowed to continue on the County’s health insurance plan after their retirement 

until they attain the age at which they will be eligible for Medicare coverage by 

paying two-thirds (2/3) of the monthly rate as non-retired employees of the County.   

Such employee’s spouse and/or child(ren) (as may be federally-required for 

coverage of health insurance), shall likewise be entitled to remain on the County’s 

health insurance plan until said spouse attains the age at which they are eligible for 

Medicare coverage, and/or the child(ren) attains the age at which they are no longer 

allowed to be covered by their parent’s plan. 

 

4. Any employee retiring upon reaching the age of 60 years, with a minimum of 

fifteen (15) years but less than twenty (20) years of service to Hamilton County, 

shall be shall be allowed to continue on the County’s health insurance plan after 

their retirement until they attain the age at which they will be eligible for Medicare 

coverage by paying one-third (1/3) of the monthly rate as non-retired employees of 

the County.   Such employee’s spouse and/or children (as may be federally-

required for coverage of health insurance), shall likewise be entitled to remain on 

the County’s health insurance plan until said spouse attains the age at which they 

are eligible for Medicare coverage, and/or the child(ren) attains the age at which 

they are no longer required to be covered by their parent’s plan. 

 

5. Any employee retiring upon reaching the age of 60 years, with a minimum of 

twenty (20) years but less than thirty (30) years of service to Hamilton County, 

shall be shall be allowed to continue on the County’s health insurance plan after 

their retirement until they attain the age at which they will be eligible for Medicare 

coverage, and shall not be required to pay for said coverage.   Such employee’s 

spouse and/or children (as may be federally-required for coverage of health 

insurance), shall likewise be entitled to remain on the County’s health insurance 

plan until said spouse attains the age at which they are eligible for Medicare 

coverage, and/or the child(ren) attains the age at which they are no longer required 

to be covered by their parent’s plan. 



6. Any employee retiring upon reaching the age wherein they are eligible for 

Medicare shall not be allowed to continue on the County’s health insurance plan.   

However, such employee’s spouse at the time of the employee’s retirement and/or 

child(ren) (as may be federally-required for coverage of health insurance) shall be 

entitled to remain on the County’s health insurance plan until said spouse attains 

the age at which they are eligible for Medicare coverage, and/or the child(ren) 

attains the age at which they are no longer required to be covered by their parent’s 

plan.  

 

7. Once a rate has been determined for a retiree, said retiree’s monthly rate will 

remain the same until coverage is cancelled. 

 

8. All coverage for the retiree and/or their spouse will cease upon each becoming 

eligible for Medicare. 

 

9. Employees eligible for retirement must elect coverage at the date of their retirement 

and must pay their required share monthly, in advance. 

 

10. Any retiree and/or their spouse who acquires employment subsequent to their 

retirement from the County and has health insurance available to them through 

their post-retirement employment shall not be eligible to continue on the County’s 

health insurance plan until they are eligible for Medicare. 

 

11. In the event of the death of a retiree, the surviving spouse will continue to be 

covered on the County’s health insurance plan until the earlier of: their remarriage, 

they become eligible for Medicare, or the elapse of ten (10) years from the date of 

the death of the retired County employee.   

 

12. Health insurance coverage for the retiree’s dependent child(ren) shall continue until 

said dependent attains the age at which federal guidelines would no longer require 

the retiree to provide health insurance for said dependent. 

 

13. All County employees shall be given full credit toward their retirement 

requirements for up to four (4) years of United States military service.  

 

14. Future amendments to this policy will require a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the county 

legislative body. 



 

 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 

AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 

 

☐  

Rejected: 
 

☐ 
 

 

 

Approved: 

 

☐ 

County Clerk 

 

 

Vetoed: 
 

☐ 
 

  County Mayor 

 

October 15, 2014 

  
Date 

 


	10-15-14 Agenda
	1014-_S_Minutes_Recessed Meeting - September 24, 2014 _1158_09-24-14 Recessed
	Recently the Commission received a citizens concern regarding deer population and scheduled hunts at the Enterprise South Nature Park.  Kirk Miles, Wildlife Manager IV from the Tennessee Wildlife Resource Agency (TWRA) was present at the Commission’s ...
	He had be made aware of Commission Resolution No. 1111-14 requiring a TWRA report to the Commission no later than May of each year prior to a hunt. He stated that reports had not been made in previous years because TWRA was not aware of this requirement.

	1014-_S_Minutes_Agenda Session - September 24, 2014 _1160_09-24-14 Agenda
	STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session

	1014-_S_Minutes_Regular Meeting - October 1, 2014 _1161_10-01-14 Regular
	DELEGATIONS

	1014-_S_Order of Designation - October 13, 2014
	1014-_S_Order of Appointment - Samuel C. Petty
	1014-16_R_Bill Knowles_Notary_1159_10-15-14
	1014-16_S_Bill Knowles_Notary_1159_10-15-14 A
	1014-17_R_Zoning_Rezoning_1142_2014-075
	1014-17_S_Zoning_Rezoning_1142_20140925094317234
	1014_17A_R_Zoning_Rezoning
	1014_17A_S_Zoning_Rezoning
	1014_17B_R_Zoning_Rezoning
	1014_17B_S_Zoning_Rezoning
	1014-18_R_Zoning_Rezoning_1143_2014-089
	1014-18_S_Zoning_Rezoning_1143_20140925094336354
	1014-19_R_Zoning_Rezoning_1144_2014-096
	1014-19_S_Zoning_Rezoning_1144_20140925094359870
	1014-20_R_Sheriff Hammond_Sheriff Governors Highway Safety Grant Safe Journey._1149_Safe Journey
	1014-21_R_Sheriff Hammond_Sheriff Governors Highway Safety Grant Remove Impaired Intoxicated Driver._1150_RIID Grant
	1014-22_R_County Mayor_United Way_1147_United Way 2014
	1014-23_R_Don Allen_Release of Co titled Vehicle_1141_DBVFD
	1014-24_R_Albert Kiser_Contract renewal with International Equipment Company Inc._1152_RES. FIRE ALARM SYSTEM INSPECTIONS CONTRACT RENEWAL 10-15-14
	1014-24_S_Albert Kiser_Contract renewal with International Equipment Company Inc._1152_Fire Alarm System Inspections Contract Res.
	1014-25_R_Albert Kiser_Purchase of Fuel for September 2014._1155_Fuel Resolution September 2014
	1014-25_S_Albert Kiser_Purchase of Fuel for September 2014._1155_September 2014 docs
	1014-26_R_Becky Barnes_WIC Services with Southside and Dodson Avenue Community Health Centers._1145_SS DA WIC RESOLUTION 2015.doc
	1014-26_S_Becky Barnes_WIC Services with Southside and Dodson Avenue Community Health Centers._1145_SS-DA WIC Contract 2018
	1014-27_R_Becky Barnes_HIV STD Prevention Services._1146_HIV STD 2015 Resolution
	1014-27_S_Becky Barnes_HIV STD Prevention Services._1146_HIV-STD Contract 2015
	1014-28_R_Becky Barnes_HRSA Grant for Homeless Health Care services._1154_HRSA Resolution 2014
	1014-28_S_Becky Barnes_HRSA Grant for Homeless Health Care services._1154_HRSA Award for Homeless Health Care Clinic
	1014-29_R_Todd Leamon_One 4x2 Utility Vehicle_1151_RES. (1) 4x2 UTILITY VEHICLE 10-15-14
	1014-29_S_Todd Leamon_One 4x2 Utility Vehicle_1151_(1) 4X2 Utility Vehicle 1-15-14
	1014-30_R_Todd Leamon_Chester Frost Park Electrical and Water Upgrades._1153_RES. CFP ELECTRICAL & WATER UPGRADES 10-15-14
	1014-30_S_Todd Leamon_Chester Frost Park Electrical and Water Upgrades._1153_CFP Electrical and Water Upgrades 10-15-14
	1014-31_R_Todd Leamon_Bulk De Icing Salt_1157_RES. SALT FROM STATE CONTRACT 10-15-14
	1014-31_S_Todd Leamon_Bulk De Icing Salt_1157_Salt from State Contract
	1014-32_R_Todd Leamon_Beer Sales Distance from churches etc.
	1014_33_R_Rheubin Taylor_Retiree Insurance

